
Meeting Notice 

The next meeting of the Gunnison Valley 
Transportation Authority (RTA) will take place: 

January 12, 2024 at 8:00 a.m. 
In the Commissioners’ Room 

located in the Gunnison County Courthouse, 
200 East Virginia Avenue in Gunnison. 

For copies of the agenda and minutes of 
previous meetings, please go to 

www.gunnisonvalleyrta.org/meetings  
or call Scott Truex at 970-275-0111. 

Two or more County Commissioners may be in 
attendance at this meeting. 

Also, three or more RTA Board Members may attend the monthly 
Mayor/Manager meetings which are held at noon on the first Thursday of each 

month – call Scott Truex at 970-275-0111 for the next meeting location.

1



 

 

AGENDA – JANUARY 12, 2024 
GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

GUNNISON COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM – 8:00 A.M 

 

 
8:00 A. INTRODUCTION  
 

CONSENT AGENDA – motion & decision requested to approve the consent agenda 

B. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA  
 C.  APPROVAL OF DECEMBER 8, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
 D. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S FINANCIAL REPORT  
 E. CORRESPONDENCE  

F. OLD BUSINESS 
1) Air program reports 
2) Bus program reports  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

8:05 F. OLD BUSINESS - continued 
3) Airport update – Rick Lamport 
4) Tourism and Prosperity Partnership report – John Norton 
5) Bus service update – Scott Truex & Dean Herrara 
6) Air service update – Bill Tomcich 

 
8:25 G. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
8:30 H. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF 
 
8:35 I. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Election of officers of the GVRTA for 2024 – motion and decision requested 
2) Review and possible authorization of window art on buses for CB State of Mind – 

Cole Cooper and Scott Truex – motion and decision requested 
3) Authorize the Board Chair to sign a contract with Fehr and Peers for consultant 

services to develop a Strategic Operating and Capital Plan for GVRTA’s Commuter 
Bus Service for an amount not to exceed $82,000 – Scott Truex – motion and 
decision requested 

 
9:00 J. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING  
 
Next meeting – February 16, 2024 at 8:00 a.m. in the Crested Butte Council Room.   
 
All times are approximate – the meeting may move more quickly or more slowly than indicated. 

2



GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
MEETING MINUTES  
December 8, 2023 

Crested Butte Town Council Meeting Room 
A. INTRODUCTION 
Janet Farmer called the meeting to order at 8:01 am 
Board members in attendance: Janet Farmer, Jason MacMillan, Laura Puckett Daniels, Steve 
Morris, Boe Freeburn, Diego Plata, Anna Fenerty.  Also present are Scott Truex, Leia Morrison, 
Bill Tomcich (Air Planners), Dean Herrera (Alpine Express), Danny Bartelli, Landon Ogilvie 
(Alpine Express) and community members  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

B. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
C. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 3, 2023 MEETING MINUTES 
D. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S FINANCIAL REPORT 
E. CORRESPONDENCE 
F. OLD BUSINESS 
1) Air program reports 
2) Bus program reports 

 
Jason MacMillan moved to approve the consent agenda, Boe Freeburn seconded the 
motion. 
Motion passed unanimously 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
F. OLD BUSINESS 
 
3)Airport Update  
Rick Lamport updated the council on the one canceled flight that occurred due to an icy runway. 
Rick also updated the council on the new airport restaurant, Bar 76. The delay right now for the 
restaurant opening is the acquisition of a liquor license permit. The parking fee system at the 
airport has been initiated. A long-term lot next to the airport is available for a monthly rate. The 
rate for daily parking is $8, and the monthly rate is $80. Rick also reported that there are new 
rates and charges to airlines for landing fees.  
 
4)Tourism and Prosperity Partnership Association (TAPP)  
John Norton (on ZOOM) said he was happy that Mark Reaman of the Crested Butte News 
published the numbers for the airport in the newspaper. He feels that the message of increased 
reliability is necessary for our community. He is pleased with the advanced bookings that GUC 
is experiencing.  
 
5)Bus service update  
Scott Truex introduced the staff and management from Alpine Express at the meeting (Danny 
Bartelli, Landon Ogilvie, and Dean Herrera). Scott reported that the October ridership was up 

3



20%, and November was up 25%. We are now running the 41 round-trip schedule. We are on 
track to carry 320,000 passengers in 2023, up from 250,000 in 2022. The concrete project is still 
underway and should be completed this year. For RTA housing, Scott reported that all but two 
of our housing units are spoken for. We are holding one housing unit for a mechanic, leaving 
one unit available for a driver.  
 
6)2023 Fall and Winter Air Service Update  
Bill Tomcich reiterated that the new procedures and aircraft result in higher load factors due to 
improved reliability. We ended with an 81.8% load factor in November. Over the next two 
weeks, we will transition from one flight a day to a second daily from Denver. JSX will return to 
the market with a five-flight-a-week schedule out of Dallas. America Airlines resumes a twice-
daily schedule from DIA. The Houston flight resumes non-stop service on December 21st. JSX 
is going to run from December 21st to January 7th. American Airlines will run its winter schedule 
through April 3rd. American will be increasing their available seats by about 16%. Houston 
service is still a Minimum Revenue Guarantee. In the spring, United decided to extend the ski 
market by nine days through April 8th and extend the summer schedule. We are looking very 
strong for advanced bookings, and GUC is pacing over 11.4% of last year. Bill defined revenue 
and non-revenue fliers for the board.  
 
G. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - None. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF 
Laura Puckett Daniels shared with the board some concerns that have been expressed to her 
by bus drivers: lack of clarity in the schedule, lack of seniority, and hiccups in operation. Her 
concern is retention. Landon from Alpine Express spoke to these concerns. He encouraged the 
board to contact Alpine Express directly or through Scott Truex if/when this kind of feedback 
comes.  
 
1)Presentation from the Crested Butte Planning Department – Draft Transportation Mobility Plan  
Mel Yemma presented a draft of the Crested Butte Mobility Plan. Jason MacMillan commented 
that there is a real value in having bathrooms at any central hub, so he sees this as an 
additional challenge to the need for a warm shelter. Laura Puckett Daniels asked about the 
proposed roundabout at Red Lady. Mel Yemma shared CDOT’s and the committee’s 
recommendations.  
 
2) Discussion regarding setting a date for a Board of Directors retreat with the Air 
Command Committee to discuss air service planning and goals for the next 
several years  
The Air Command Retreat with the Board of Directors will be on March 22nd, following the 
regularly scheduled board meeting in Gunnison. 
 
3) Purchase of lot at 500 S. 9th Street in Gunnison  
Scott Truex reported that the asking price for the property was $350,000 and that the RTA 
contracted at $320,000. The lot has been surveyed, and it is 50 feet by 140 feet. Scott said that 

4



the RTA will extend the life of its facility by 10-20 years with this purchase, and this purchase 
will allow us to remain where we are in relation to the current bus maintenance facility. Danny 
Bartelli agreed that it is an excellent investment and that they can access and park buses there 
with this added lot.  
 
4) Resolution Number 4, Series 2023 - A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE GUNNISON VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE GUNNISON VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Boe Freeburn moved to approve resolution Number 4, Series 2023. Jason MacMillan 
seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously 
 
5) Approval of contract with Gunnison County and Gunnison Valley Health to provide 
senior transportation in 2024  
Discussion ensued regarding the defined service area of the senior transportation service. Scott 
will follow up with the board on the 3-mile service area.  
Anna Fenerty moved to approve the contract with Gunnison County and Gunnison Valley 
Health. Diego Plata seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously 
 
6) Approval of contract with Gunnison County and Mountain Express to provide senior 
transportation in 2024  
Laura Puckett Daniels moved to approve the contract with Gunnison County and 
Mountain Express to provide senior transportation in 2024. Jason MacMillan seconded the 
motion. 
Motion passed unanimously 
 
7) Amendment of contract with Social Firekeeper, LLC dated January 1, 2023  
Diego Plata moved to amend the contract with Social Firekeeper, LLC. Jason MacMillan 
seconded the motion 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
8) Award of contract for consultant services to develop a Strategic Operating and 
Capital Plan for GVRTA’s Commuter Bus Service  
Diego Plata moved to award a contract for up to $85,000 in consultant services to 
develop a Strategic Operating and Capital Plan for GVRTA’s Commuter Bus Service to 
Fehr and Peers. Boe Freeburn seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:33 am 

5



 

 

November, 2023 - Financial Report: 
 

 

This report was prepared for the GVRTA Board of Directors on December 30, 2023 
with information provided by the County Finance Department and shows posted 
revenues through October, 2023 and expenditures through November, 2023.   

Sales Tax Revenues: 

 

  

6



GVRTA Fund Reports: 

 

  

  

7



GVRTA Fund Reports:  

  

8



Summary of all Funds  

 

 

9



Air Program Reports – Winter, 2023-24 as of 1/1/24 

All Flights – Total Seats Sold vs. previous three years 

 

 

All Flights – Total Load Factor vs. previous three years 

 

10



Bus program reports – December, 2023 
 

 
 
 

Passengers by Stop – Winter 2023-24 
 

 
  

11



Passenger Boardings by Time – Winter 2023-24 
 

Northbound 
 

 
  

12



Passenger Boardings by Time – Winter 2023-24 
 

Southbound 
 

 
 

13



 

 
Late/Missed Runs & Incidents –December, 2023 

      

              

 

14



GVRTA 2023 Emissions Analysis – Through November

 

  

15



2023 Miles per Bus: 

 
 

2023 Repairs per Bus: 

  
 

Senior Transportation Report 

 

16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Election of Officers:  
 
The staff requests a motion to appoint officers for 2024.  
 
Current officers:  

• Chair: Janet Farmer 
• Vice Chair: Vacant (was Jim Miles) 
• Secretary: Liz Smith 
• Treasurer: Jason MacMillan 

 
 
The officers are elected by the Board of Directors each January for one-year terms.   
 
 

17



18



December 21, 2023 

Scott Truex, Executive Director 

Gunnison Valley Regional Transportation Authority 

PO BOX 1911
Crested Butte, CO 81224 

Re: Consultant Agreement for GVRTA Commuter Bus Strategic Operating and Capital Plan 

Dear Scott: 

Fehr & Peers is pleased to present you with its proposed consultant agreement for the GVRTA Commuter 

Bus Strategic Operating and Capital Plan, along with our scope, travel and project fee, and signed FTA 

Appendix. Please review and, if GVRTA is in agreement with all its terms and conditions, sign where 

indicated and return to us one copy of the signed consultant agreement. 

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding the proposed consultant agreement, or should you 

need any additional information from us, please contact me at (720) 539-7239 or via email at 

m.kaminer@fehrandpeers.com before signing and returning the document.

Please forward all documents to Mikhail Kaminer at Fehr & Peers, 410 17th Street, Ste 1000, Denver, CO 

80202. 

Sincerely, 

FEHR & PEERS 

Jason Miller 

Principal-in-Charge 

Attachments: 

Proposed Consultant Agreement 

Scope of Work 

Project Timeline 

Project Travel and Total Costs 

Mikhail Kaminer 

Project Manager 

19

mailto:m.kaminer@fehrandpeers.com


CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

Client: 

Consultant: 

Project: 

Gunnison Valley Regional Transportation Authority (GVRTA), located at 

PO BOX 1911, Crested Butte, CO 81224 

Fehr & Peers, a California corporation, 410 17th Street, Ste 1000, Denver, CO 80202 

GVRTA Commuter Bus Strategic Operating and Capital Plan 

Effective date of this agreement:  01/12/2024 

Attachments: A Additional Terms 

B Scope of Work 

C 

D 

Project Timeline 

Project Travel and Total Costs 

Client and Consultant agree as follows: 

1. Consultant’s Services

a. This is an agreement between Client and Consultant (“Agreement”) for Consultant to provide

professional services. Consultant agrees to provide the scope of services described in Attachment

A, as well as all work incidental to or necessary for the performance of such services, all in

accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement (the “Work”).

b. The Work shall be performed by persons qualified under applicable federal, state and local law to

undertake the Work, in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, exercising the

same degree of care, skill, and diligence as is ordinarily possessed and exercised by members of

their professions, currently practicing, under similar circumstances.

2. Term

The term of the Agreement shall commence on the date it is made as indicated above, and shall

continue until December 31, 2024, or until the Work is completed by Consultant if earlier than December

31, 2024, or until this Agreement is terminated under Section 13 below.

3. Data To Be Furnished by Client

All information, data, documents, records and maps with respect to the Project which are available to

Client and are reasonably necessary for the performance of the Work (“Client Materials”), shall be

furnished to Consultant without charge by Client.

20



4. Independent Contractor, Not An Agent

a. Consultant acknowledges that it is an independent contractor and that in performing the Work, it

is not acting as Client’s agent or representative. Consultant agrees that it will employ at its own

expense, and will be solely responsible for, all personnel necessary to perform the Work, and that

in no event shall such personnel be considered the employees of Client. Consultant assumes full

and sole responsibility for the payment of all compensation for, and expenses incurred by, all of its

personnel who are engaged in performing any part of the Work, and for all state and federal income

tax, unemployment insurance, Social Security, disability insurance, workers’ compensation

insurance, as well as all other withholdings that may be applicable to the performance of the Work.

b. Except as Client may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, to

act on behalf of Client in any capacity as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or

implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Client to any obligation, or to make any decision or

promise, or to enter into any contract, oral or written, on behalf of Client.

5. Compensation

a. Client shall pay Consultant in accordance to the compensation schedule attached as Attachment

B. Such compensation shall be deemed to include overhead and incidental expenses, for which

no additional compensation shall be paid by Client.

b. Consultant shall submit invoices to Client monthly, describing in reasonable and understandable

detail the services rendered, fee charged, and expenses incurred by Consultant during the previous

month.

c. Each of Consultant’s monthly invoices shall be paid within thirty days after its submission by

Consultant.

d. If payment on any of Consultant’s invoices is not received within 60 days, Consultant may, at its

sole discretion, and by written notice to Client, elect to stop work until all payments are received.

Client agrees to pay all costs, including attorney’s fees and court costs, incurred by Consultant to

collect on past due invoices.

6. Time of Performance

a. Consultant shall commence, perform, and complete the Work in accordance with the schedule for

Consultant’s performance described in Attachment C. If any of the project scope, required data,

and/or comments to be provided by the Client is delayed, the due dates in this schedule will be

extended accordingly.

b. Consultant shall not be responsible for any delay due to factors not within Consultant’s reasonable

control whether or not such delay is foreseeable.

7. Ownership

a. All of Consultant’s electronic and hard-copy records, including all maps, files, reports, drawings,

sketches, samples, photographs, film and videos, memoranda, notes, correspondence, emails, and

21



other documents and communications, draft or final, as well as all of their contents, including all 

inventions, data, information, ideas, improvements, discoveries, methodologies, models, formats, 

software, algorithms, software, processes, schematics, programs, procedures, designs, calculations, 

details, specifications, assumptions, and findings, conclusions, summaries, interpretations of 

regulations, investigations, and sources of information, and all related information, that are 

developed, discovered, collected, produced, or created by Consultant and its contractors, vendors, 

and consultants in the course of its performance of the Work are considered Consultant’s Work 

Product. 

b. All parts of the Work Product are instruments of Consultant’s service to be used solely within the

Project, for the purposes intended by their development, discovery, collection, production, or

creation by Consultant under this Agreement, and the Consultant shall be deemed the author and

owner of the Work Product, and shall retain all rights, titles, and interests, in the Work Product,

including any and all property rights, ownership rights, intellectual property rights, copyrights and

moral rights, as well as all rights under all trademarks, service marks, domain names, and trade

dress, that arise from the creation of the Work Product. Client shall be permitted to retain copies,

including reproducible copies, of the Work Product for information and reference in connection

with the Client’s use on the Project. Client shall not use, or permit to be used, the Work Product on

other projects, or for changes to this Project without the express written consent of the Consultant.

Consultant shall not be liable or responsible for any use, reuse, or modification of, or derivation

from, any of its Work Product made without Consultant's written consent other than for purposes

intended by this Agreement. Submission or distribution of documents to meet official regulatory

requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as

publication or violation of copyright.

c. Consultant grants Client an irrevocable, non-exclusive, royalty-free, worldwide, right and license in

perpetuity to publish, analyze, translate, reproduce, deliver, perform, derive from, display, transfer,

and use the Work Product, but solely within the Project, for the purposes intended by its

development, discovery, collection, production, or creation by Consultant under this Agreement.

d. Consultant shall not have, and shall not claim, any right, title, or interest, in any Client Materials,

other than a non-exclusive license to use such materials, but solely for the particular purpose for

which such materials are provided to Consultant.

8. Confidentiality, Data Security

a. Private Data is the privacy and sensitive information of individuals, or any confidential, sensitive, or

personal data that alone or in conjunction with other information identifies any individual, including

the individual’s name, address, license plate information, mobile phone information, license plate

information, and any information on the individual’s uniquely identifying movements and activities.

b. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement, Consultant shall not deliver to Client in any form

or medium, nor shall it incorporate into any information, data, document, or work product to be

delivered to Client, any Private Data that Consultant may collect or use in performing its services,

or that may otherwise be in Consultant's possession or control, and none of such Private Data shall

be a work for hire or belong to Client.

22



c. Consultant agrees to maintain as confidential all information that Client labels in writing as

confidential or privileged with a standard of care at least as rigorous as that exercised by Consultant

in protecting and maintaining the security of its own proprietary or confidential information.

d. Pursuant to a court order, Consultant may disclose any information that Consultant is obligated to

keep confidential, or that Consultant is prohibited from disclosing under this Agreement. However,

before seeking any such court order, or immediately upon receiving any court order requiring the

disclosure of any such information, Consultant shall notify Client and reasonably cooperate with

Client in the event Client seeks any legal protective order.

9. Consultant’s Insurance

a. Consultant shall procure and maintain for the term of this Agreement the following insurance

coverage at the following limits specified for each.

i. Commercial General Liability Insurance $ 2 million per occurrence/$ 4 million aggregate 

ii. Automobile Liability Insurance $ 1 million per occurrence 

iii. Workers’ Compensation Insurance Per statutory requirements 

iv. Employer’s Liability Insurance $ 1 million policy limit 

v. Professional Liability Insurance $ 1 million per claim/$ 2 million aggregate 

b. Consultant shall carry excess liability coverage in the amount of $5 million each occurrence / $5 million

aggregate to the Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability, and Employers Liability policies

only.

c. Prior to commencing Work under this Agreement, Consultant shall provide Client with a Certificate

of Insurance evidencing such coverage and limits, and specifying that the insurer shall give the

Client an unqualified thirty day’s advance written notice prior to any cancellation of the policy.

10. Non-discrimination in Employment

a. Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, disability, age, national origin or low

income status. Consultant shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and

that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex,

sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, disability, age, national origin or low income

status. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading,

demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or

other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. Consultant

further agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for

employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

b. Consultant ensures non-discrimination in all programs and activities and shall comply with the

Additional Terms made a part of this Agreement in Attachment D.

11. Notices

23



Any notice or demand to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and be deemed given when 

personally delivered or sent by mail, and addressed to the parties as set forth above or to such other 

address as either party shall have previously designated by such a notice. Any notice so delivered 

personally shall be deemed to be received on the date of delivery, and any notice so mailed shall be 

deemed to be received five days after the date on which it was mailed. 

12. Waivers

Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any

subsequent breach either of the same or of another provision of this Agreement. Any provision of this

Agreement determined to be unenforceable shall be severed from the Agreement, and the remainder

of the Agreement shall be given full force and effect.

13. Termination

Client and Consultant may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time upon seven days’

written notice to the other. Client shall pay Consultant in accordance with the provisions of this

Agreement for the part of the Work performed up to the day notice of termination is given.

14. Modification

No waiver, alteration, modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and executed

by both parties.

15. Interpretation

The provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted to give effect to their fair meaning and shall be

construed as though prepared by both parties.

16. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State in which the Project is located, excluding its

conflicts of laws provisions.

17. Multiple Counterparts; Electronic Copies; Electronic Signature

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original.

Upon execution of such counterparts, all counterparts together shall constitute the entire Agreement.

Electronic transmission (e.g., by facsimile or email) of an executed counterpart of this Agreement shall

be as effective as delivery of an original executed counterpart. In addition, pursuant to the Electronic

Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act and the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act, both

parties agree to accept an electronic signature as a valid replacement of an ink and paper signature for

all business transactions related to this Agreement.

18. Successors and Assigns

24



This Agreement shall be binding upon Client and Consultant, their successors and assigns. Neither 

party shall assign, subcontract, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any interest in this Agreement without 

the prior written approval of the other, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

19. Third-party Beneficiaries

This Agreement confers or creates no rights or benefits in anyone other than Client and Consultant, and

it has no third-party beneficiaries.

20. Attorneys’ Fees

If any party hereto shall bring any suit or action against another for relief, declaratory or otherwise,

arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall have and recover against the other party, in

addition to all court costs and disbursements, such sum as the court may adjudge to be reasonable

attorney’s fees and expert witness fees.

21. Entire Agreement

This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between the parties as to the subject matter of this

Agreement and merges all prior discussions, negotiations, letters of understanding or other promises,

whether oral or in writing.

“Consultant” “Client” 

FEHR & PEERS GVRTA 

A California Corporation A  

(Type of Business) 

Dated: 12/21/2023 Dated: 

By: By: 

Jason Miller 

Principal-in-Charge 

Printed 

By: 

Signed 

Title: 

Janet R. Farmer

Board Chair

1/12/2024

political subdivision of the State of Colorado

25



 

ADDITIONAL TERMS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



(1) Compliance with Regulations: The Consultant shall comply with the Regulation relative to 

nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafter, "DOT'') Title 49, 

Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the 

Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 

(2) Nondiscrimination: The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall 

not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of 

subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not 

participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations, 

including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

 

(3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all 

solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Consultant for work to be performed 

under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor 

or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant’s obligations under this contract and the 

Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

 

(4) Information and Reports: The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required by the 

Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other 

sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the DOT to be pertinent to ascertain 

compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a Consultant is 

in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information the Consultant shall so 

certify to the DOT as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 

(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Consultant’s noncompliance with the 

nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the DOT shall impose such contract sanctions as it may determine to 

be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 

(a.) withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or 

(b.) cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

(6) Incorporation of Provisions: The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (6) 

in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 

Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. 

 

The Consultant shall take such action with respect to any subcontract. or procurement as the DOT may direct as a 

means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance: Provided, however, that, in the event a 

Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such 

direction, the Consultant may requestthe DOT to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the DOT, and, 

in addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the 

United States. 

27



Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities 
 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21. 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 

4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired 

because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects); 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of 

sex); 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, 

(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs 

or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub- recipients 

and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 

disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of 

public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by 

Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations 

and Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by 

discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human 

health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, 

And resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of 

Limited English Proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable 

steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 

to 74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 

discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
28



 

ILLEGAL ALIEN CERTIFICATION. 

 

The Following Certifications are made by Contractor pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-101, et seq.: 

 

(a) Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this 

Contract or enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to Contractor that the 

subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under the 

Contract; 

 

(b) Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 

employment to perform work under this Contract through participation in either the e-verify program 

or the department program; 

 

(c) Contractor certifies that it will use either the e-verify program or the department program procedures 

to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Contract is being performed; 

 

(d) If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this Contract 

knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Contractor  shall be required to: (1) notify the 

subcontractor and the GVRTA within three days that Contractor has actual knowledge that the 

subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and (2) terminate the subcontract with 

the subcontractor if within three days of receiving the notice required pursuant to subsection (1), the 

subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that Contractor 

shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three days the subcontractor 

provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted 

with an illegal alien; 

 

(e) Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the department made it the course of an 

investigation that the department is undertaking pursuant to the authority established in Section 8-

17.5-102(5). 

 

(f) If Contractor violates a provision of this Agreement regarding requirements under Section 8-17.5-

102(2), C.R.S., the GVRTA may terminate this Agreement for a breach of the Contract.  If the 

Agreement is so terminated, Contractor  shall be liable for actual and consequential damages to the 

GVRTA.  In the event of termination under this provision, the GVRTA is required to notify the Secretary 

of State. 

 

29



 
 

 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
 
 

TASK 1 – DEMOGRAPHIC REVIEW 
 

Kicking off the planning process will be a 

comprehensive demographic review to understand the 

demographic and travel patterns of the GVRTA 

community. This demographic review will report on the 

same data characteristics used for the previous 

strategic plan in order to consistently track changes 

over time. These characteristics will include population 

density, transit-dependent population characteristics, 

community economic characteristics, and travel 

pattern characteristics. In addition to the 

characteristics used in the previous plan, we will 

analyze other data sources to understand the 

community, such as health equity data and a geospatial 

trasit access analysis. These data points will shape the 

travel markets and needs to be addressed by service 

expansion projects in Task 3. This review task will also 

include a review of relevant local and regional 

transportation plans, and review land use growth plans 

and trends to ensure that recent development and 

planned land use changes are incorporated into the 

final strategic plan. 

Assumption about GVRTA’s role: 
• Provide not readily available data, local and 

regional plans, and knowledge on recent land 

use developments that will impact the plan. 
 

 

TASK 2 – PUBLIC OUTREACH 
(Passenger Surveys and Stakeholder 
Interviews) 
Fehr & Peers devotes our own resources to fifteen 

discipline groups to innovate across the transportation 

field, including the Equity and Engagement Discipline 

Group that we believe differentiates us as a leader in 

community engagement. We know that successful 

outreach is intuitive, accessible, stimulating, useful, 

and fun. Although we have done extensive research 

and practice in the engagement field, we know that the 

key to our success in reaching people in the GVRTA 

service area will be flexibility. 

 

Passenger Surveys 
A key element to ensuring GVRTA reaches those who 

would be most affected by service changes is on-board 

passenger surveys. Like the demographic review, this 

survey will mimic the 2016-2017 survey to understand 

change over time. In addition, this survey will seek 

specific input on desired transit route and facility 

improvements. In doing so, the survey will help 

understand travel patterns, travel purposes, desired 

improvements, and associated demographic 

information. This will help shape the potential service 

expansion (Task 3) and route optimization (Task 4). 

Two on-board paper surveys will be administered by 

Fehr & Peers during the peak winter season and peak 

summer season. An online version of the survey 

(described below) will also be available to riders. Fehr 

& Peers staff will travel on approximately 40 buses 

during each season to gather survey data, roughly 

structured to have six hours per day at both ends of 

the commuter bus route for two days per staff member 

per season. The surveying schedule will be defined in 

detail during the process, but it will generally ensure 

coverage over weekdays and weekends at different 

hours of the day. Both our project manager, Mikhail, 

and lead planner, Kelsey, have Spanish-speaking 

abilities, and will be able to communicate with 

Spanish-speaking transit riders. 

 

Online Survey 
To complement the on-board survey, Fehr & Peers will 

also develop an online version of the survey. We will 

ensure that both the printed and online versions of the 

survey are provided in both English and Spanish. The 

online version of the survey can help GVRTA reach a 

larger audience, both of existing transit riders and 

people who do not currently ride transit. We will work 

with GVRTA staff to identify the best methods for 

Task 1 Work Product 

• Technical report on the findings 
of the demographic review and 
how that information will 
influence the remainder of the 
study. 30



 

 
GVRTA Commuter Bus Service Strategic Operating and Capital Plan FEHR & PEERS 

 
 

reaching the largest number of commuter bus riders, 

including the creation of a flyer and partnering with 

local community organizations (such as the Gunnison 

Country Times, Gunnison Community Center and 

Gunnison County Public Library) to increase 

engagement with the survey. 
 

Stakeholder Interviews 
Passenger surveys can be an effective way to reach a 

large portion of the population. In addition, having 

targeted conversations with identified stakeholders 

can provide greater detail into the nuances of 

transportation challenges, and it can ensure that 

diverse community perspectives are heard and 

considered. In partnership with GVRTA and other 

community partners, Fehr & Peers will focus on 

engaging with populations most impacted by the 

GVRTA commuter bus service. Examples of 

people/organizations with whom interviews can be 

held include Western Colorado University, Gunnison 

Valley Health, Emigrantes Unidos, the business 

community, and transportation providers (besides 

GVRTA). A more detailed list of people to interview will 

be developed with GVRTA (along with the one provided 

in the RFP), but Fehr & Peers anticipates conducting up 

to ten stakeholder interviews, ideally during the same 

visits as the passenger survey collection periods. 

Assumption about GVRTA’s role: 
• Connect and help Fehr & Peers with key 

stakeholders and local organizations for 

interviews and flyer/information distribution. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TASK 3 – POTENTIAL SERVICE 
EXPANSION PROJECTS 

Identify Travel Markets 
Building on the demographic review and public 

outreach, our team will work with GVRTA to organize 

the identified travel needs into major trip types and 

travel markets. This exercise will identify what trip 

types are currently being captured by transit, and 

where the potential shortfalls likely exist. Some of the 

travel markets may include local trips for employment 

and services, regional commute trips, and trips by 

specific segments of the population, such as seniors, 

students, or people with disabilities. 
 

Evaluate and Prioritize Projects 
After categorizing the transportation needs into travel 

markets, our team will assemble options for service 

expansion projects that serve the travel markets. 

Service expansion projects could include direct 

improvements to the GVRTA commuter bus service (as 

a result of Task 4), capital improvements to help 

facilitate the operation of the commuter bus service 

(as a result of Task 5), or new services (such as first and 

last mile transit connections) that also help more 

people reach and benefit from the commuter bus 

service. All opportunities, including direct GVRTA 

Task 2 Work Products 

• Printed and online survey (English and 

Spanish). 

• One flyer to advertise the survey 

(English and Spanish). 

• Two in-person visits with 48 total 

hours of on-board surveying (English 

and Spanish abilities). 

• Up to ten stakeholder interviews 

(virtual or in-person, depending on 

timing). 

• Technical report showing the 

demographics and needs of GVRTA 

passengers and how they have 

changed over the years. 

• Presentation to Board of Directors on 

project progress. 

31



 

 
3 FEHR & PEERS GVRTA Commuter Bus Service Strategic Operating and Capital Plan 

 

 

improvements and intergovernmental partnerships to 

enhance statewide service will be documented. 

 

Our team specializes in helping clients identify their 

preferred alternative by providing the latest 

information on transit service best practices along with 

the pros and cons of each option, based on the 

experiences of peer communities. To aid in selecting 

and prioritizing the best options, we will assess each 

potential project on a list of identified evaluation 

criteria. These criteria will be workshopped with 

GVRTA staff but will generally be related to 

compatibility with public input, ability to meet the 

travel needs, relative operating costs, capital needs, 

forecasted ridership, and organizational factors. 

 

With the evaluation of each potential project, our team 

will prioritize the projects into a phased approach over 

the next five years. This will help GVRTA understand 

the feasibility and the urgency of each project, and 

guide GVRTA in its implementation with clear cost 

estimates, infrastructure needs, and organizational 

logistics. The evaluation of projects, along with the 

implementation steps, will be presented with visually 

appealing and easy-to-understand graphics. 

Assumption about GVRTA’s role 
• Help identify most important evaluation 

criteria. 

• Provide institutional knowledge and input on 

feasibility of potential projects. 

 
 

TASK 4 – ROUTE OPTIMIZATION 
ANALYSIS 

 
Task 4 analyzes the existing GVRTA services and 

identifies opportunities to improve efficiency. This task 

ultimately feeds into the service expansion project 

prioritization in Task 3 to serve the travel needs. 

 
This task will begin by evaluating service characteristics 

of the existing GVRTA services, including span of 

service, service coverage, and service frequency by 

season. We will then conduct a ridership and 

performance analysis, which will utilize annual, 

monthly, and stop-level ridership to identify route 

productivity. Paired with public input, Fehr & Peers will 

identify opportunities to modify existing services that 

better accommodate rider needs. The visually 

appealing work product of this analysis will include a 

set of service modification options, accompanied by 

measurable impacts on span of service, service 

frequency, productivity, and GVRTA finances. 

Assumption about GVRTA’s role 
• Provide detailed ridership data, including 

annual ridership, monthly ridership, and 

ridership by stop. 

• Provide institutional knowledge and input on 

feasibility of route modifications. 
 

 
 

 
TASK 5 – TRANSIT FACILITY ANALYSIS 

 
Task 5 will identify the need and suggested locations 

for facilities that support the operations of transit and 

other transportation modes, such as park and ride 

facilities and other multi-modal transit centers. Like 

Task 4, this task will feed into the service expansion 

project prioritization in Task 3 to help understand what 

infrastructure is required to expand the ability of 

GVRTA’s existing and future riders to use the 

commuter service and other transportation services. 

 

Evaluation of Transit Facilities 
Fehr & Peers will first evaluate locations and 

organizational considerations of different types of 

transit facilities. 

 
Park and Ride Facilities 

The previous Strategic Transit Plan identified potential 

locations for park and ride lots, and Fehr & Peers will 

consider these previous planning efforts in conjunction 

with the existing conditions of demand and land use 

opportunities. Between revisiting the previous 

planning efforts and existing community needs, we will 

Task 3 Work Product: 

• Technical report summarizing the 

potential service expansion 

projects, including a phased list 

of projects to be pursued. 

Task 4 Work Product: 

• Technical report summarizing the 

optimization analysis, including 

recommendations for revising the 

route and/or the timing of 

schedules. 

32



 

 
GVRTA Commuter Bus Service Strategic Operating and Capital Plan FEHR & PEERS 

 

 

develop a comprehensive list of locations that can 

potentially be future park and ride lots served by the 

GVRTA commuter service or connecting services. 

 
Multi-Modal Transit Center 

Fehr & Peers will identify potential locations for a 

multi-modal transit center which can provide a safe 

space for riders to wait for the commuter bus, while 

also supporting other transportation modes like CDOT 

Bustang services, future GVRTA services, bicycle 

parking, rideshare/taxi loading locations, electric 

vehicle charging, etc. We also understand that GVRTA 

had previously identified the city property next to the 

Gunnison Recreation Center as a future multi-modal 

transit center but has recently faced political 

challenges with this site. Similar to the park and ride 

lot analysis, we will revisit with GVRTA to understand if 

there is any opportunity to view the established site as 

a potential site for this multi-modal transit center in 

conjunction with other potential locations. 

 
Other Transit Facilities 

Beyond park and ride lots and a multi-modal transit 

center, there are other transit facilities that could 

assist in making the commuter service more accessible 

to existing and future riders. Fehr & Peers will evaluate 

which facilities might be necessary to accomplish the 

service expansion projects, such as bus stop and transit 

shelter improvements, potential new administrative 

and maintenance facilities, and wayfinding/information 

infrastructure and technology. 

 

Implementation of Transit Facilities 
Between the park and ride facilities, multi-modal 

transit center, and other supportive transit facilities, 

Fehr & Peers will help GVRTA prioritize the 

implementation of each facility. Each potential location 

for each facility will be ranked using suitability, capital, 

and operations metrics. Furthermore, each type of 

facility will be ranked against one another based on 

identified travel needs through the demographic 

review and input received during public outreach. 

Assumption about GVRTA’s role 
• Providing history and lessons learned of 

previous efforts to implement transit 

facilities. 

 
 

TASK 6 – FINAL PLAN 
To finalize and document the demographic review, 

public input, different analyses, and recommendations, 

Fehr & Peers will develop the GVRTA Strategic 

Operating and Capital Plan. Although this task was not 

in the original scope of work per the RFP, we believe it 

is a critical step to ensure the final plan combines all 

technical reports that were produced iteratively 

throughout the process in a way that is comprehensive 

and efficient. As with all other reports in the project, 

the final plan will be visually-appealing and employ 

easy-to-understand graphics, including a graphical 

executive summary of the service expansion projects. 

Ultimately, this plan will guide GVRTA’s next five 

operating years, serving as a document that can be 

leveraged for funding and other key decisions for the 

success of GVRTA’s services. One round of 

consolidated edits from GVRTA staff will be included. 

The plan will also be presented to the GVRTA Board of 

Directors. 

Assumption about GVRTA’s role 
• Reviewing and commenting on the plan 

before finalization. 

Task 5 Work Product: 

• Technical report summarizing 

the transit facility analysis, 

including the identification 

and prioritization of the 

facilities. 

 
Task 6 Work Products: 

• Draft plan delivered in 

Microsoft Word format. 

• Final plan delivered in PDF 

format following one round 

of review by GVRTA staff. 

• Presentation to GVRTA Board 

of Directors on final plan. 

33



 

 

FEHR & PEERS GVRTA Commuter Bus Service Strategic Operating and Capital Plan 

 
 

TIMELINE 
The proposed schedule below keeps this plan moving forward on a timeline appropriate for completion of each 

interrelated task. The deviation in the below schedule and the anticipated schedule provided in the RFP is the 

delivery of the final plan and presentation to the GVRTA Board of Directors occurring in Fall 2024, rather than 

late summer 2024. We strongly believe that Tasks 3 through 5 are correlated to the results of public input. With 

public input being scheduled through summer 2024, to fully incorporate public input, we will need to extend the 

timeline into Fall 2024. Further, it is likely that the outcomes of the plan will include recommendations to both 

winter and summer service, informed by both winter and summer passenger surveys and outreach. 

 

34



 

 
GVRTA Commuter Bus Service Strategic Operating and Capital Plan FEHR & PEERS 

 
 

TRAVEL 
 

To complete a critical portion of Task 2, project manager, Mikhail, and lead planner, Kelsey, will travel to 

Gunnison for on-board passenger surveys and potentially in-person stakeholder interviews. Since the scope 

proposes a winter and a summer on-board survey, Mikhail and Kelsey will travel to Gunnison twice. The 

suggested dates for travel include the first week of March to capture a busy winter season week/weekend and 

the first or second week of July to capture a busy summer season week/weekend. These dates can be modified 

with the project team, as GVRTA will be able to better display the peak weeks of ridership during both seasons. 

Estimated travel costs are displayed in the table below, and they are also included in the total project fee. 

 

 
  

 

Description 

Kaminer Lindquist  

 
Total Cost 

by Item 

 
 

Project Manager 

 
Lead 

Planner 

1 Flight (Assumes 2 Round Trips) $ 750 $ 750 $ 1,500 

2 Hotel (Assumes 2 Nights Twice) $ 600 $ 600 $ 1,200 

3 Rental Car (Assume 2 Rentals) $ 400 $ - $ 400 

4 Meals (Assumes 8 meals per trip) $ 400 $ 400 $ 800 
     

Total Fee $ 3,900 
 

 

COSTS 

 

35


	Notice
	Agenda
	Minutes from December
	Financial Report
	Air Program Reports
	Bus Program Reports
	Election of Officers
	CB State of Mind Window Art
	Fehr and Peers Contract



